
October 11, 2016 - Page 1 

 

The Menominee County Board of Road Commissioners held a regular meeting in their offices north 

of Stephenson on Tuesday, October 11, 2016. 

 

Chair Kakuk called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. with the following persons present or absent: 

 

Present: William Anderson, Anthony Kakuk, Joseph Skrobiak, Darrell Moilanen and Lisa Savord.  

Also present were Paul Schroud, Duane Sundberg, Clifford Nelson, Jr., Gary Schick, Larry Barker, 

Jerry Piche and Joe Linder. 

 

Absent: None 

 

Public comments – Paul Schroud asked when Beattie Creek Lane would be worked on.  Moilanen 

replied that it should be done before winter. 

 Duane Sundberg asked why the culverts were done on Holmesbrook Road, but then the crew 

pulled out and haven’t been back to finish the job.  Moilanen explained that the job had to be 

postponed until next year due to work needing to be done first on roads that were nearly impassable 

during spring break up.  He noted that next year the road will be pulverized, graveled and then chip 

sealed.  Mr. Sundberg also stated that Lance Road, east of Cheese Factory Road, needed gravel.  

Moilanen responded that it would need a grade lift prior to being graveled and that roads with full 

time residents would be the top priority.   

 Gary Schick stated the culvert by the creek on Holmesbrook road is washing out. 

 

Public appearances – None. 

 

Additions/corrections to minutes for 09/06/16 & 09/26/16 – There being no additions or corrections, 

Kakuk declared that the minutes will stand as written.  

 

Financial Report –   

 
 

 

There being no questions or comments, Kakuk declared the financial report accepted as read. 

Receipts Expenditures

Payables / 

Reserves Balances

Balance, September 5, 2016 $2,867,026.97

Receipts thru 09/30/16 59,378.90

Expenditures thru 09/30/16 403,791.08

Balance, Serptember 30, 2016 $2,522,614.79

Michigan Transportation Funds 312,307.09

Receipts thru 10/10/16 0.00

Expenditures thru 10/10/16 109,964.71

State Maint. & Equip. Advances 101,568.00

Balance, October 10, 2016 371,685.99 513,755.79 101,568.00 2,623,389.17   

Payables & Reserves

Payroll 10/20, and 11/03 (Est.) 130,000.00

Soc. Sec. 10/20 and 11/03 (Est.) 9,945.00

Reserve for workers compensation insurance 13,804.00

Reserve for liability insurance 72,887.52

Reserve for rental grader leases - John Deere (Oct 2015) 152,668.00

Reserve for rental grader leases - Cat Financial (Dec 2015) 431,567.05

Reserve for Forest Funds 0.00

Reserve for 2014 Federal Aid Match 0.00

Reserve for 2015 Federal Aid Match 189.00

Reserve for 2016 Federal Aid Match 178,561.09

Reserve for Design Engineering for No. 5 Road & No. 10 Road bridges 11,267.34

Reserve for County Line Road - 20% Share of Phase 1 130,000.00

Reserve for 2016 bridge inspections 2,100.00

Reserve for rental of Vermeer mulcher (2 months) 0.00

Reserve for rental of Cat Mulcher (1 month) 4,300.00

Reserve for crushing & stockpiling 15,000 tons of 22A gravel 37,200.00

Reserve for crushing & stockpiling 22,500 tons of 22A gravel 0.00

Reserve for Vega Road box culvert 26,400.00

Reserve for second mowing on county system (paved roads only) 0.00

Reserve for Capital Outlay-Equipment (3 plow trucks, paint cart) 680,000.00 (1,880,889.00)  

742,500.17$    



 

October 11, 2016 - Page 2 

 

Vouchers # 16-0059, 16-0061, 16-0063, 16-0930, and 17-0002 – Moved by Skrobiak, seconded by 

Anderson that the vouchers be approved and ordered paid. Carried unanimously. 

 

Open bids for bid cutting edges for moldboard assemblies – Bids were opened and read aloud as 

follows: 

 

D. A. MacPherson, Inc., Crystal Falls, MI      Steel ¾” x 8” x 6’            71.22 each 

   Steel ¾” x 8” x 7’              73.71 each 

                Carbide 7/8” x 8” x 4’      145.83 each 

 Note: Their Carbide blades are 7/8” x 5” x 4” 

 

H&L Mesabi, Negaunee, MI Steel ¾” x 8” x 6’            81.00 each 

   Steel ¾” x 8” x 7’              94.50 each 

                Carbide 7/8” x 8” x 4’     325.00 each 

 

Moved by Anderson, seconded by Skrobiak to award to low bidder, D.A. MacPherson, pending 

tabulation of the bids and verification that blades will work on our equipment. Carried unanimously. 

 

Discuss Sinclair Lane – Moilanen explained that only a minimal amount of maintenance had been 

performed on this road over the past several years and that the board could either choose to decertify 

0.3 mile in question or leave it certified as it has been and maintain it going forward.  Kakuk noted 

that there were a few trees that would need to be removed prior to plowing.  Moved by Anderson, 

seconded by Skrobiak to continue to certify the road and to provide regular maintenance.  Carried 

unanimously.  

 

Discuss mine access to CR356 and proposed bypass on River Road – Moilanen provided photos and 

a summary of each of the proposed routes, along with a discussion of the application process for an 

easement through state land if alternative route # 1 was to be implemented.  It was noted that 

alternative route # 1 was 5.77 miles long and alternative route # 2 would be 7.65 miles.  Both 

alternatives would include realigning .72 miles of River Road to go around the mine pit area.  Aquila 

Resources would need to certify to the road commission that no hazards would be existing 

(environmental, cultural, etc.) prior to the road commission accepting the realigned portion of River 

Road. 

 Anderson asked if both routes would be built to Class A standards.  Moilanen replied he thought 

they would, but if they weren’t then seasonal weight restrictions would apply.   

 Anderson asked if there would be any cost to the road commission with either route.  Moilanen 

stated that Aquila Resources would be paying all costs associated with improving the roads.   

 Kakuk stated that he would like more time to review the information.   

 Skrobiak asked if a representative from the DNR needed to be present for the discussion.  

Moilanen stated that the local representative was aware of the alternative route # 1 proposal to go 

through state land, but that the final decision as to whether it would be allowed would be made in 

Lansing once the application was received.   

 Skrobiak asked who would maintain the new road.  Moilanen stated that it would be certified as 

a county road and that the road commission would be responsible for the maintenance.  

 A decision on this item was tabled until the November 8, 2016 regular meeting to allow the 

commissioners more time to review information on both routes. 

 

Any other business – Kakuk stated that 15.1 Road needed to be patched by the new culvert.  He also 

noted that he had driven on Holmesbrook Road and agreed that it was in very poor condition and 

should be fixed as soon as reasonably possible.  

 Kakuk asked when the annual employee safety training was being held.  Moilanen replied it will 

be on Wednesday, October 26 at 7:30 a.m. at the Maple Aire apartments meeting room. 

 Jerry Piche asked if the mine road was built through the state land, would there be a land swap 

between the state and Aquila Resources.  Clifford Nelson, Jr. responded that there would not be a 

land swap, and that the mine would be applying for an easement only. 

 

Public Comment – Joe Linder asked if the road commission would be crushing gravel in the Tebo 

pit.  Moilanen stated that the current Tebo pit was done, but that they may have another location for 

gravel to be crushed.  Gravel will be crushed in the Bartoszek pit in the next few weeks.  Moilanen 

asked Mr. Linder if there was more limestone being crushed in the Kraniak pit.  Mr. Linder 

answered that he was currently talking to the parties involved. 

 Mr. Linder asked when the road commission would begin to receive any of the new road funding 

money.  Moilanen stated not until after January 2017 and that there was already talk about a possible  

change to the formula.  Mr. Linder asked if the road commission would then be hiring more  



October 11, 2016 - Page 3 
 

personnel.  Moilanen replied that equipment would be upgraded first. 

 

 Gary Schick asked what part of the proposed mine access roads required a permit.  Moilanen 

responded that the state easement was needed only for the portion that would go through state land.  

Mr. Schick asked why worry about building the roads now, since the mine didn’t know yet where 

they would be shipping from.  Clifford Nelson, Jr. stated that the trucks would have to be able to get 

to US 41 regardless of where the product eventually shipped out from.  

 

 Joe Linder asked Skrobiak if he had looked at the area on J-1 Road that Jerry Hoduski was 

complaining about and if he thought there were any problems there.  Skrobiak responded that the 

only thing he could see was the area by the culvert could use more limestone.  Moilanen noted that 

they had run out of crushed limestone and that once more was available some could be added in that 

area. 

 

There being no further business, Kakuk declared the meeting adjourned at 10:07 a.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Road Commission Finance Director / Clerk             Chair 


